
County Offices
Newland

Lincoln
LN1 1YL

27 January 2017

Planning and Regulation Committee

A meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee will be held on Monday, 6 
February 2017 at 10.45 am in Meeting Room, Lincoln Alive Conference Centre, 
Alive Church, 22 Newland, Lincoln LN1 1XD for the transaction of business set out 
on the attached Agenda. 

Yours sincerely

Tony McArdle
Chief Executive

Membership of the Planning and Regulation Committee 
(15 Members of the Council)

Councillors I G Fleetwood (Chairman), D McNally (Vice-Chairman), J W Beaver, 
D Brailsford, G J Ellis, D C Hoyes MBE, D M Hunter-Clarke, M S Jones, 
Ms T Keywood-Wainwright, N H Pepper, Mrs H N J Powell, Mrs J M Renshaw, 
C L Strange, T M Trollope-Bellew and W S Webb

Public Document Pack





PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE AGENDA
MONDAY, 6 FEBRUARY 2017

Item Title Pages

1. Apologies/replacement members 

2. Declarations of Members' Interests 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and 
Regulation Committee held on 16 January 2017 

5 - 6

TRAFFIC ITEM 

4. Traffic Regulation Orders - Progress Review 7 - 14

COUNTY MATTER APPLICATION 15 - 18

5. To demolish an existing building, construct a new building 
and operate a waste transfer station, including the 
production of refuse derived fuel, with associated 
development including a new weighbridge, relocation of 
existing wash bay, diesel tank and re-alignment of existing 
fence line by Veolia ES (UK) Ltd at Waste Management 
Facility, Veolia Site, Long Leys Road, Lincoln - L/1076/16 

19 - 68

COUNTY COUNCIL APPLICATION 

6. Erection of a free standing kitchen pod which will act as a 
"hub" providing meals for this and other local schools. The 
proposal also comprises a covered walkway, along with 
relocation of existing storage units and bike shelter at 
Coningsby St Michael's CofE Primary School, School Lane, 
Coningsby - (E)S35/2348/16 

69 - 80



Democratic Services Officer Contact Details 

Name: Steve Blagg

Direct Dial 01522 553788

E Mail Address steve.blagg@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

 Business of the meeting
 Any special arrangements
 Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.

All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords


1

PLANNING AND REGULATION 
COMMITTEE

16 JANUARY 2017

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR I G FLEETWOOD (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors D McNally (Vice-Chairman), J W Beaver, D Brailsford, G J Ellis, 
D C Hoyes MBE, D M Hunter-Clarke, M S Jones, Ms T Keywood-Wainwright, 
N H Pepper, Mrs H N J Powell, Mrs J M Renshaw, C L Strange, T M Trollope-Bellew 
and W S Webb

Officers in attendance:-

Steve Blagg (Democratic Services Officer), Graeme Butler (Project and Technical 
Support Manager), Mark Heaton (Area Highways Manager (Grantham)), Neil 
McBride (Planning Manager) and Stuart Tym (Solicitor)

62    APOLOGIES/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

None received.

63    DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

No declarations of interests were made at this stage of the meeting.

64    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND 
REGULATION COMMITTEE HELD ON 5 DECEMBER 2016

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 5 December 2016, be approved as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

65    TRAFFIC ITEMS

66    SUTTON ON SEA, ALFORD ROAD (A1111) - PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS

The Committee received a report in connection with an objection received during the 
public advertising of proposed restrictions along Alford Road, Sutton on Sea.

The report detailed the existing conditions, the proposal, objection received and the 
comments of officers on the objections received.

On a motion by Councillor Mrs H N J Powell, seconded by Councillor I G Fleetwood, 
it was - 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



2
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE
16 JANUARY 2017

RESOLVED (unanimous)

That the objection be overruled and the proposal for parking restrictions on Alford 
Road (A1111), Sutton on Sea, as advertised and shown on Appendix B, detailed in 
the report, be implemented.

67    STAMFORD STREET AND VICTORIA STREET, GRANTHAM - 
PROPOSED NO WAITING RESTRICTIONS

The Committee received a report in connection with an objection received to the 
introduction of no waiting restrictions on short sections of Stamford Street and 
Victoria Street, Grantham.

The report detailed the background, the proposal, consultations, the objection 
received and the comments of officers on the objection received.

On a motion by Councillor N H Pepper, seconded by Councillor M S Jones, it was - 

RESOLVED (unanimous)

That the objection be overruled and the introduction of No Waiting At Any Time in 
those areas of Stamford Street and Victoria Street, Grantham, as detailed in 
Appendix A of the report, be implemented.

68    COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS

69    TO VARY CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO FIVE SEPARATE PLANNING 
CONSENTS WHICH COVER THE MINERAL AND WASTE OPERATIONS 
BEING CARRIED OUT AT HARMSTON QUARRY, TOWER LANE, 
HARMSTON - HARMSTON WASTE MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
(SILKSTONE ENVIRONMENTAL LTD) - N30/1341/16, N30/1342/16, 
N30/1354/16, N30/1361/16, N30/1364/16

On a motion by Councillor W S Webb, seconded by Councillor C L Strange, it was - 

RESOLVED (unanimous)

That planning permissions be granted subject to the following conditions detailed in 
the report:-

Appendix B - N30/1341/16
Appendix C - N30/1342/16
Appendix D - N30/1354/16
Appendix E - N30/1361/16
Appendix F - N30/1364/16

The meeting closed at 10.50 am

Page 6



  
Regulatory and Other Committee

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills, Executive Director for Environment 
and Economy

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee
Date: 6 February 2017
Subject: Traffic Regulation Orders – Progress Review 
Decision Reference:  Key decision? No 
Summary: 
This report informs the Committee of the position on all current Traffic 
Regulation Orders (Appendices A - E) and petitions received since the last 
meeting (Appendix F).

Recommendation(s):
That the report be received and the receipt of petitions be noted.

Background
N/A 

Conclusion
N/A

Consultation

a)  Has Risks and Impact Analysis been carried Out?
N/A

b) Risk and Impact Analysis?
N/A

Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report
Appendix A North Division - East Lindsey Area
Appendix B North Division - Greater Lincoln and 

Gainsborough Area
Appendix C South Division - Boston and South Holland 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4.



Area
Appendix D South Division – South Kesteven and 

Sleaford Area
Appendix E Explanatory Note on the Temporary 

Suspension of Traffic Regulation Order 
Reviews

Appendix F Petitions that have been received since the 
last report

5. Background Papers

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report

This report was written by Paul Little who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
highways@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 8



1033.X0R

                      
APPENDIX A

        
NORTH DIVISION – EAST LINDSEY AREA

PARISH LOCATION TYPE PREVIOUS POSITION PRESENT POSITION

1. Anderby Creek  Road Waiting Restrictions Consulting

2. Haltham A153 50mph Speed Limit Re-advertise Operative 25/11/16

3. Horncastle West Street/Bridge Street Waiting/Loading Restrictions Operative date to be arranged As previous

4. Langrick / Brothertoft Various Roads Various Speed Limits Operative date to be arranged Operative 01/12/16

5. Louth London Road 40mph Speed Limit Operative date to be arranged Operative 16/12/16

6. Mablethorpe Various Roads (High Street etc) Waiting Restrictions Operative date to be arranged Operative 25/11/16

7. Maltby le Marsh / 

Beesby

Various Roads Speed Limit Amendments Consulting Operative  01/02/17

8. Revesby West Lane Prohibition of Motor Vehicles Advert 03/08/16 – 31/08/16 Operative date to be arranged

9. Sibsey A16 Pedestrian Crossing Operative date to be arranged Operative 04/09/16

10. Skegness Burgh Road Waiting Restrictions Consulting

11. Skegness North Parade North Parade Consulting

12. Spilsby / Halton 

Holegate

Halton Road / Spilsby Road 40mph Speed Limit Consulting

13. Sutton on Sea Alford road Waiting Restrictions Objections to be reviewed Operative date to be arranged

14. Sutton on Sea 

(Sandilands) to   

Chapel st Leonards

Sea Bank 40mph Speed Limit Consulting

15. Trusthorpe Sutton Road Prohibition of Driving Consulting

16. West Keal Various Roads 30mph Speed Limit Operative date to be arranged Operative 01/02/17

P
age 9



1033.X0R

APPENDIX B

NORTH DIVISION - GREATER LINCOLN & GAINSBOROUGH AREA

PARISH LOCATION TYPE PREVIOUS POSITION PRESENT POSITION

1. Bardney Horncastle Road Waiting Restrictions and Bus Stop Consulting As previous

2. Branston B1188 Sleaford Road 30mph Speed Limit Operative 13/03/17

3. Lincoln Constable Avenue / Shannon 

Avenue

Waiting Restrictions Operative 30/12/16

4. Lincoln Clasketgate, Mint Street and 

Corporation Street

Various Waiting Restrictions, Taxi 

Rank and Loading Bay

Operative date to be arranged As previous

5. Market Rasen Queen Street Experimental Loading Restrictions On Going Experiment As previous

6. Welton Lincoln Road Bus Stop Facilities Operative date to be arranged As previousP
age 10



1033.X0R

APPENDIX C

SOUTH DIVISION - BOSTON & SOUTH HOLLAND AREA

PARISH LOCATION TYPE PREVIOUS POSITION PRESENT POSITION

1. Boston Market Place Review of Waiting Restrictions Operative date to be arranged As previous

2. Boston Sussex Avenue, Arundel Crescent, 

Amberley Crescent and Rosebery 

Avenue

Waiting Restrictions Advert 10/08/16 – 07/09/16 Operative date to be arranged

3. Boston London Road Toucan Crossing Operative date to be arranged As previous

4. Kirton Willington Road Waiting Restrictions Consulting As previous

5. Old Leake B1184 The Gride 50mph Speed Limit Operative date to be arranged As previous

6. Sutterton A17 Derestriction Consulting As previous

7. Wyberton Various Roads 30mph Speed Limit Consulting As previous

8. Wyberton A16 Pedestrian Crossing and 

Prohibition of Driving

Operative date to be arranged Operative 04/11/16

P
age 11



1033.X0R

        APPENDIX D

SOUTH DIVISION - SOUTH KESTEVEN AND SLEAFORD AREA

PARISH LOCATION TYPE PREVIOUS POSITION PRESENT POSITION

1. Grantham Church Street / Castlegate Waiting Restrictions Consultations imminent As previous

2. Grantham Londonthorpe Lane 40mph Speed Limit Operative date to be arranged Operative 04/11/16

3. Grantham St Catherines Road and   

Welham Street

Waiting Restrictions Operative date to be arranged As previous

4. Grantham Stamford Street/Victoria Street Waiting Restrictions Operative date to be arranged

5. Heckington A17 50mph Speed Limit To be reviewed As previous

6. Sleaford Duke Street Area Residents Parking Advert 24/08/16 – 21/09/16 Operative date to be arranged

7. Sleaford London Road Pedestrian Crossing Consulting

8. Stamford St Marys Hill  Waiting Restrictions and 

Pedestrian Crossing

Advert 09/12/16 – 10/01/17

9. Stamford Uffington Road Pedestrian Crossing Operative date to be arranged As previous

P
age 12



1033.X0R

Appendix E

Explanatory Note on the Temporary Suspension of Traffic Order Regulations 
Reviews

In November 2015 the Portfolio Holder agreed to a temporary suspension of 
Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) progression.

Work on TROs is currently only initiated in the following circumstances:

a. TROs that were in progress at the start of December 2015.

b. TROs required as a result of collision investigation by Lincolnshire 
Road Safety Partnership.

c. TROs required to facilitate and progress new developments

Page 13



1033.X0R

APPENDIX F

The following petitions have been received since the last report.  They have been acknowledged 
and will be dealt with in the normal manner.

PARISH LOCATION PETITION FOR

Grantham

Tetney

Woodhall Spa

Alma Park

Various Roads

B1191 Horncastle Road

Request for Traffic Calming

Reinstatement of Bus Service

Reduction of Speed Limit

Page 14



Page 15

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank



Lincolnshire County Council 
 
Planning and Regulation Committee – 6 February 2017 
 
 Location Map Attached 

 
Item 5. 
 
Applicant – Has requested that the application is deferred to allow further 
discussions to take place with Lincoln City Council. 
 
The applicant has recently met with the City Council to discuss the proposed 
development and following the initial meeting further discussions are planned to take 
place.  However, because of the short time now available before the Committee 
meeting there is likely to be insufficient time to meet with the City Council. 
 
Has also suggested that the following condition could address the reason for refusal 
set out in the report:- 
 
"No waste materials shall be deposited at or removed from the site outside of the 
hours of 07:00 to 18:00 hours (Monday to Friday) and 07:00 to 17:00 hours 
(Saturdays) and with no operations on Sundays and Public Holidays." 
 
This condition would be enforceable given that under the permit the weighbridge 
tickets for incoming and outgoing waste is capable of being monitored.  The 
weighbridge monitoring data along with Permit conditions will allow effective 
monitoring and enforcement of the above condition and meet the appropriate tests. 
 
Planning Manager – The condition put forwarded by the applicant is noted and 
consideration was given to the use of such a condition when assessing the 
application.  However, given the fact that the same vehicles would be operating 
under two different permissions with different starting and finishing times it is still 
considered that such a condition could not identify whether vehicles returning outside 
the suggested hours are carrying waste or not.  A vehicle returning with waste could 
park up overnight, then use the weighbridge the following morning and this would be 
recorded as a legitimate delivery and the Planning Authority would not be able to 
monitor or enforce such a condition. 
 
In addition if a vehicle left the depot before 07:00 and returned with waste it could 
then be argued that this was connected with the waste transfer operation but there 
would be no means of checking if a breach of planning condition has taken place.  
With the existence of the waste transfer station it may result in additional activity with 
vehicles leaving before 7.00am and then returning shortly after 7.00am to deposit 
waste which may not be the case at present resulting in the potential for additional 
early morning movements with no ability to control these under either existing 
permissions or a permission granted for the proposed development with the 
condition recommended by the applicant. 
 

Page 17



On that basis the conclusion is that the suggested condition does not overcome 
concerns raised in the committee report and that the recommendation to refuse the 
application is still valid. 
 
Also, it is not considered that the issue of the alternative site is relevant in the 
determination of the application before the Committee today.  On that basis it is 
recommended that the Committee determine the application at this Committee and 
do not defer the matter to another date. 
 
Councillor Shore – "As Portfolio holder for Waste and Recycling, my opinion has 
been sought on this matter and I would like to say that I am content with the 
recommendation made by Officers and hope that the Committee sees fit to agree 
with that recommendation.  I too believe that it would cause an unacceptable impact 
on the amenity of local residents and consequently would be in conflict with 
development plan policies.  Therefore the recommendation that planning permission 
be refused is the right one." 
 
Local Residents – Since the publication of the report a further 31 representations 
have been received largely making the same comments as set out in the main 
report. 
 
The comments are focussing on Highway Safety and the potential impacts on the 
Green Spaces and Habitats in the area (primarily Hobblers Hole). 
 
The representation on behalf of local residents group has put forward evidence 
where they consider the application does not accord with Policies from the National 
Planning Policy Framework or the emerging Central Lincolnshire Local Plan.  
 
Raise concern that the applicant's vehicles already speed and cause disturbance in 
the early morning when leaving the depot. 
 
In addition, having read the Committee report and supporting the reason for refusal 
are surprised that the impact from evening and night-time noise is the only matter of 
concern identified.  Draw attention to the other issues of concerns raised by 
objectors (which are set out in the report) and note that these objections stem from 
the probable reality of the operations as a package, and the anticipated consequent 
harm to the character and general amenity of Long Leys Road as part of a largely 
residential area. 
 
Whilst the applicant will be seeking to play down or alleviate individual aspects of 
fears by offering minor concessions and arguing over minor details consider in short 
that the package as a whole i.e waste importance, storage and plant and bulk carrier 
lorries and large building and potential non-stop operation will, for the reasons stated 
above constitute an offensive type of development that should have no place in any 
pleasant residential area. 
 

Page 18



 
 

 Regulatory and Other Committee 
 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills  
Executive Director, Environment & Economy 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 6 February 2017 

Subject: County Matter Application - L/1076/16 

 

Summary: 

Planning permission is sought by Veolia ES (UK) Ltd to demolish an existing 
building and to construct a new building which would be used to accommodate a 
waste transfer station along with associated development including a new 
weighbridge, relocation of existing wash bay, diesel tank and re-alignment of 
existing fence line at the Veolia site, Long Leys Road, Lincoln. 

The proposed development would replace an existing redundant building which 
has been used in conjunction with the existing and continuing use of the wider site 
for empty bin/skip storage and as a HCV depot and HCV repair workshop.  The 
proposed new building would be used for carrying out waste transfer operations 
including the segregation and shredding of approximately 46,500 tonnes per 
annum of non-hazardous commercial and industrial waste materials consisting of 
mainly dry mixed recyclables such as plastics, paper, cans, glass and card.  The 
recyclable materials would be tipped and stored for a short period of time before 
being bulked up and sent off site for re-use elsewhere.  Any general/residual waste 
materials which are not capable of being individually re-used/recycled would be 
shredded to produce Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF) before being transported off site 
for use at other facilities.  As well as the new building it is also proposed to install a 
weighbridge as well as the relocation of a number of existing operations within the 
site including the vehicle washing facility and fuel tank to allow a better circulation 
of vehicles around the site. 

 

Recommendation: 

The proposed development has been considered against the relevant development 
plan policies and the comments received through consultation and publicity. This 
assessment has concluded that it is not possible to impose a condition that would 
restrict the hours of operation to the day-time period and it has not been 
demonstrated that the development can take place during the night-time period 
without causing an unacceptable impact on the amenity of local residents.  
Consequently this is in conflict with development plan policies and it is 
recommended that planning permission be refused. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5.



Background 
 
1. The Veolia Depot is located on the site of a former Old Albion clay pit and brick 

works which was subsequently landfilled with inert waste as a means to 
restore the site.  More recently the site has been used for the carrying out of a 
number of waste management related activities including as a waste transfer 
station and skip hire business until it was purchased in 2007 by Veolia and has 
since been used as a logistics depot for their 12 Refuse Collection Vehicles 
(RCV).  The site currently has three planning permissions granted by the City 
of Lincoln Council which cover the erection of buildings and offices at the site.  
There are no restrictions or conditions on these permissions which restrict or 
limit the hours of operation for these permitted uses. 

 
The Application 
 
2. Planning permission is sought by Veolia ES (UK) Ltd to demolish an existing 

building and to construct a new building which would be used to accommodate 
a waste transfer station along with associated development including a new 
weighbridge, relocation of existing wash bay, diesel tank and re-alignment of 
existing fence line at the Veolia site, Long Leys Road, Lincoln. 

 
3. The facility would accept 46,500 tonnes per annum of non-hazardous 

commercial and industrial waste materials predominantly comprising of dry 
mixed recyclables such as plastics, cans, paper, glass and card.  The waste 
materials would be sourced from offices and industrial premises, 
predominantly within Lincolnshire (approximately 95%) which contract Veolia 
to collect and dispose of their waste.  Some of the imported waste materials 
would be source segregated and upon arrival at the site would be tipped, baled 
and stored by type inside bays within the proposed building prior to being 
bulked and transported off-site for further recycling.  It is proposed that glass 
would be brought to site three days per week and exported off-site for further 
recycling every two weeks.  Any residual/general wastes which are not 
capable of being individually recycled/re-used would be shredded using 
dedicated plant/machinery to produce a Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF) which 
would then be stored within the building before being loaded into bulker 
vehicles and transported off-site for further treatment elsewhere 

 
Existing and Proposed Buildings 
 
4. The existing building scheduled for demolition (Photograph 1) is used for 

general storage and is constructed of brick and has an asbestos sheet roof.  
The building is approximately 32 metres long by 11 metres wide with a height 
to the pitch of approximately 6 metres. 

 
5. The proposed new building would be of steel frame construction with double-

skinned profiled steel clad walls and a pitched roof (approximately 10.5 metres 
to the eaves and 12 metres to the pitch).  The building would be coloured 
goosewing grey (BS:10A05) and internally the lower portion of the walls would 
also comprise of pre-cast concrete push wall panels to a height of 4.0 metres.  
The building would be L-shaped and sub-divided into three distinct areas.  The 

Page 20



south western arm of the building would be used to receive source segregated 
dry mixed recyclables and house storage bays and a baler.  The south eastern 
corner of the building would receive general/residual waste materials where 
they would be deposited and shredded using plant and equipment housed 
within this area.  The north eastern arm would receive the shredded 
general/residual wastes where it would be bulk stored before being exported 
off site for use as Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF).  Each section of the building 
has been designed to enable vehicles to enter and be unloaded/loaded under 
cover.  Overall the orientation of the vehicular access points of the building 
have been designed so as to be inward facing and wholly screened from views 
beyond the boundary of the site. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photograph 1 – Existing building to be demolished 

 
6. The following table gives further details of the proposed building together with 

the proposed uses and the location of doors and openings.  Plan 1 illustrates 
the general layout of the proposed site including the proposed drainage 
arrangements for the site. 

Page 21



 

Section/ 
orientation 

Dimensions 
(L x W) 

Uses/Operations Openings/elevation 

North 
eastern 
arm  

21m x 18m Bulking up of shredded 
RDF 

Open fronted to west 
elevation but with a block 
wall to a height of four 
metres to form a retaining 
wall of a bay to be used for 
the storage of shredded 
RDF 

South 
eastern 
corner  

24m x 21m Reception for non-
source segregated 
wastes and shredding 
operations  

Fully enclosed with the 
exception of a roller shutter 
door to north elevation and 
pedestrian emergency door 
to the east elevation 

South 
western 
arm  

27m x 16m Bays for the direct 
deposit and bulk storage 
of source segregated 
wastes (e.g. glass, card 
and dry recyclables) 
along with baling 
operation 

Open fronted to northern 
elevation 

 
Plan 1 - General layout of the proposed site including drainage 

 

Page 22



Highways, Access and Transportation 
 
7. The site is accessed via an existing private road which leads off Long Leys 

Road and which is shared by a number of commercial and industrial 
businesses including a food manufacturer, cement works and vehicle repair 
workshop.  Following comments received from the Highways Officer during the 
consideration of this application, the applicant has agreed to carry out 
improvements to widen the entrance of this access road in order to allow two 
RCV vehicles to pass one another without difficulty.  The applicant's existing 
RCV fleet would be used for the importation of commercial and industrial 
waste and the proposed waste transfer operations would result in an additional 
number of bulk carrier vehicles visiting the site to collect both the segregated 
waste and RDF.  It is therefore projected that the number of daily RCV/HCV 
movements (calculated on the basis that an in and out equates to two 
movements) would be between 24 per day to a maximum of 50 per day.  The 
site would also employ an additional three people to operate the waste transfer 
station and so there would be a limited amount of additional traffic associated 
with these staff.  

 
Environmental and Amenity Impacts and Mitigation 
 
8. The applicant states that measures would be adopted to ensure that the risks 

to the environment and surrounding areas are minimised and that the site 
would be operated in accordance with the environmental controls imposed by 
an Environmental Permit (issued by the Environment Agency).  An outline and 
summary of the main environmental issues considered and measures to 
minimise any adverse impacts are set out below.  

 
9. Noise:  A noise assessment has been carried out in accordance with 

BS4142:2014 and measurements were taken at the boundary of the site with 
Albion Close, Long Leys Road (south east of site) and Long Leys Road 
(northwest of site).  The assessment considers the potential noise impacts 
arising from the waste transfer operations on the nearby residential properties 
during the daytime hours only (07:00 to 18:00 hours).  The assessment shows 
that the predicted noise levels from the operation of the waste transfer station 
would not exceed representative existing background sound levels (identified 
as being 44dB to 50dB LA90) during the daytime.  During the night-time period 
the background levels at the nearest sensitive receptors are recorded as being 
around 40dB LA90 but as the waste transfer operations are not proposed to 
take place during night-time hours no assessment has been conducted to 
identify or demonstrate if noise from those operations would be at a level that 
complaints are likely. 

 
In order to ensure that noise levels from the site during the day-time are within 
the range identified, the proposed building would be constructed in accordance 
with the recommendations of the noise assessment and shredding operations 
would not occur unless the roller shutter doors are closed.  All mobile plant 
would be fitted with broadband type noise reverse alarms (i.e. non-beeper 
type).  

  

Page 23



For the construction phase, an additional assessment in accordance with 
BS5228:2009 has concluded that it is likely that during peak noise periods 
noise levels would exceed typical residual noise levels however these would 
only be a temporary noise situation and best practice measures would be 
employed to mitigate this construction noise to a reasonable level. The 
construction period would be carried out over a period of 35 weeks. 

 
In terms of noise from traffic, it is concluded that the additional HCV 
movements associated with the operations would not result in significant 
impact on nearby sensitive receptors.   

 
10. Odour/Dust:  The proposed waste streams would be sourced from commercial 

and industrial premises and largely comprise of dry mixed recyclables such as 
plastics, paper, card and glass.  The applicant states that trade wastes tend to 
differ from general household wastes insofar as they typically contain less food 
or other putrescible wastes and as a result are unlikely to give rise to 
significant levels of odour.  However, an odour assessment has been 
conducted by the applicant that sub-divides the operations into three main 
phases and identifies the potential sources of odour in each case along with 
details of the mitigation measures to be adopted to ameliorate any impacts that 
could arise.  These are summarised as follows: 

 
 i) Delivery and Reception – all vehicles would reverse into the relevant 

section of the building and unload into a designated area where the waste 
would be checked by the operatives to ensure that the incoming wastes 
conform to the permitted waste types in accordance with the planning 
permission and Environmental Permit.  Any heavily contaminated loads 
would be rejected. 

 
 ii) Waste Transfer Station and Refuse Derived Fuel – wastes would be 

stockpiled according to type and only the non-source segregated and 
general/residual wastes would pass over a magnetic trommel to remove 
metals and be fed into the shredder.  Holding times would be minimal 
prior to processing and no RDF would be retained in the corner building 
overnight.  An odour suppression spray system would be maintained and 
operational during the shredding process and all doors in this building 
would be closed during the operation of the trommel and shredder.  The 
output bay of the shredding operation would have a separate odour 
suppression spray system and the shredded RDF would be removed off-
site daily.  The source segregated material would not give rise to odour. 

 
 iii) Waste Dispatch – all waste materials would be transported off-site by a 

registered waste carrier in sheeted or containerised vehicles.  With the 
exception of glass or the occasional late delivered load, all wastes would 
be removed from the site daily and therefore this would reduce its 
residency time and thus the potential for odours. 

 
Notwithstanding the management of waste types at the site any loads 
identified as contaminated at the time of collection will be diverted away to 
permitted organic treatment facilities.  The odour suppression system would be 

Page 24



water based and operate simultaneously as a dust suppression system and so 
therefore also help to minimise any dust emissions associated with the 
handling of wastes and their transferal to and from vehicles.  This system will 
be installed in the building as part of the construction work and will operate 
when there is a need to maintain a high humidity level. 

 
11. Litter:  The transfer of waste materials would be carried out entirely within the 

confines of the building and this would minimise the potential for windblown 
litter.  The wider site would however be subject to regular inspection to ensure 
any fugitive litter collected and therefore reduce the potential for any litter off-
site. 

 
12. Vermin:  As indicated the proposed waste streams are not unlikely to attract 

vermin as they do not tend to contain food or other putrescible wastes.  
Notwithstanding this all waste materials would be handled and stored within 
the proposed building and the building would be maintained to keep it 
weatherproof.  The applicant also states that wastes would be retained on site 
for a minimal period of time (i.e. one day) and this would therefore reduce the 
risks of vermin.  A specialist pest control contractor would also be employed in 
the event of vermin being identified as an issue. 

 
13. Fire Safety:  The applicant proposes to remove wastes and clear the storage 

bays daily thereby minimising the risks and potential for fire. In addition no 
waste would be stored outside of the building at any time.  The proposed 
development does however make provision for a fire water holding tank and 
pump house which would connect to a sprinkler system within the building and 
to be used for firefighting purposes. 

 
14. Flood Risk and Drainage:  Given the area and location of the site a Flood Risk 

Assessment is not technically required however an evaluation of potential flood 
risk has been carried out by the applicant.  This evaluation considered whether 
the proposed development is likely to contribute to flooding elsewhere and 
identified that the site is located some distance from high flood risk areas 
which are located to the west principally in the Saxilby Road/West Common 
area and are associated with Catchwater Drain/Fossdyke Canal.  Overall it is 
concluded that the site would not contribute to increasing flood risk in the area 
and would significantly improve the existing arrangement on the site and 
reduce any potential risk of flooding elsewhere.     

 
15. In terms of site drainage, following the initial consultation response from 

Anglian Water Services, the applicant carried out further investigations to 
identify and assess the existing surface and foul water drainage arrangements 
at the site.  Following these investigations a revised drainage strategy/design 
has been submitted which proposes to direct the limited volumes of any 
additional foul waters arising from the waste transfer building to a sealed 
storage sump where they would be retained and, once they reach a defined 
level, would be tankered off-site to an authorised treatment/disposal facility 
elsewhere.  Surface water run-off derived from the roof of the new building and 
the existing yard would be directed (via an oil interceptor) to an attenuation 
tank where they would then be held prior to being discharged at a controlled 

Page 25



rate into the existing surface water sewer system.  The proposed attenuation 
system would be designed to accommodate all storm events up to and 
including the 1:100 years + 20% for climate change and ensure that there is no 
net increase in the discharge rate of surface waters from the site.  The 
applicant argues that a more sustainable drainage system is considered 
difficult to implement given the extensive concrete hardstanding and the 
neighbouring site formerly being a landfill site. 

 
Hours of Operation  
 
16. The applicant proposes that whilst the use of the whole site as a logistics 

depot would continue to operate without restriction, all operations associated 
with the waste transfer station would be restricted to the following hours of 
operation: 

 
07:00 to 18:00 hours Monday to Friday; 
07:00 to 17:00 hours Saturday; and  
No operations on Sundays and Public Holidays. 

 
Relocation of Existing Infrastructure and Proposed Weighbridge 
 
17. To accommodate the new building the existing vehicle washout bay and diesel 

fuel tank would be re-located to the northern sector of the depot.  The washout 
bay is of a type which would re-circulate any wash waters generated and 
would not contribute to any increased discharge to the existing sewer system.  
The relocation of this infrastructure would also permit the site to operate 
effectively including allowing the RCVs to enter and leave the depot in a 
forward gear. 

 
18. The new weighbridge would be sited at surface level and located at the 

entrance to the depot complex and fitted with a traffic light system to ensure 
vehicle and pedestrian safety.  The proposed realignment of the palisade 
fencing at the entrance to the depot would also create space to allow RCVs to 
wait some distance from the publicly maintained highway should another 
vehicle be exiting the site via the new weighbridge and therefore ensure that 
queueing vehicles do not pose a highway safety risk. 

 
Site and Surroundings 
 
19. The proposal site covers an area of 0.9 hectares and is accessed from Long 

Leys Road via a private road which is shared with a number of other industrial 
and commercial premises, including a cement works, food manufacturer and 
distributor, car body repair works and the storage yard for builder's supplies.  
To the south of the site is the garden of the nearest residential property 
screened by a substantial bank with shrubs and trees planted on top.  The 
house itself is also screened from the site by the existing depot vehicle 
workshop which measures approximately 10 metres to the pitch and abuts the 
southern boundary of the depot.  Further along the southern boundary, running 
in an easterly direction, is a 2 metre high fence backed by mature trees (to 
heights of approximately 8 metres) and in this area the ground falls away in a 

Page 26



southerly direction which contributes to screening the site from views from the 
city centre, West Common and the West End.  Further to the south of the site 
is Hobblers Hole designated as a Site of Nature Conservation Importance 
(SNCI) and within an area identified as Green Wedge, Critical Natural Asset 
and Basic Natural Stock. 

 
20. The land further to the east of the former Albion Works landfill site (Photograph 

2) rises steeply to an elevation 38 metres above the level of the Veolia depot 
toward Yarborough Road (approximately 400 metres from the proposed site) 
where approximately six houses would have limited views from the first floor of 
the roof and rear elevation of the proposed new waste transfer building. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Photograph 2 – Albion Works Landfill rising to Yarborough Road/Burton Road Roundabout 
 

21. Immediately to the north of the Veolia depot is a car body repair shop building 
(approximately 12 metres to the roof pitch) and associated stocking yard, 
which in turn lies to the west of an area of unkempt vegetated waste land 
bound by a hedgerow of shrubs and mature trees which separates the 
application site from Albion Close (approximately 150 metres further to the 
north). 

 
22. The site is wholly screened from views from properties to the west of Long 

Leys Road and West Common by the buildings and stocking yard of the 
builders' supplies and the food manufacturing factory.   

 
Main Planning Considerations 
 
National Guidance 
 
23. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (March 2012) sets out the 

Government’s planning policies for England and is a material planning 
consideration in the determination of planning applications.  In assessing and 
determining development proposals, Local Planning Authorities should apply 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development.  The main 

Page 27



policies/statements set out in the NPPF which are relevant to this proposal are 
as follows (summarised): 

 
Paragraph 14 states that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development and that planning law requires applications to be determined in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 

 
Paragraph 17 sets out the 12 core land-use planning principles that should 
underpin both plan-making and decision-taking. 

 
Paragraph 32 states that development should only be refused on transport 
grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of developments are severe. 

 
Paragraph 60 directs planning decisions that do not impose architectural styles 
but promote development that reinforces local distinctiveness. 

 
Paragraph 103 directs planning authorities to ensure flood risk is not increased 
elsewhere. 

 
Paragraph 120 states that planning decisions should ensure that new 
development is appropriate for its location and that the effects (including 
cumulative effects) of pollution on health, the natural environment or general 
amenity and the potential sensitivity of the areas or proposed development to 
adverse effects from pollution, should be taken into account. 

 
Paragraph 121 requires decisions that have taken into account the former 
activities on the site and the potential for resulting contamination. 

 
Paragraph 122 states that local planning authorities should focus on whether 
the development itself is an acceptable use of land and the impact of the use, 
rather than the control of processes or emissions themselves where they are 
subject to approval under pollution control regimes.  Local planning authorities 
should assume that these regimes will operate effectively. 

 
Paragraph 123 requires decision makers to consider impacts of new 
development on the amenity of neighbouring properties and land users. 

 
Paragraph 124 requires planning decisions that ensure new development in 
Air Quality Management Areas is consistent with the local air quality action 
plan. 

 
Paragraphs 186 and 187 state that local planning authorities should approach 
decision-taking in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable 
development and should look for solutions rather than problems and decision-
takers at every level should seek to approve applications for sustainable 
development where possible.  Local planning authorities should work 
proactively with the applicant to secure developments that improve the 
economic, social and environmental conditions in the area. 

 

Page 28



Paragraphs 203 - 206 require local planning authorities to consider whether 
otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the 
use of condition and/or Planning Obligations and only impose conditions where 
they are necessary, relevant to planning and to development to be permitted, 
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. 

 
Paragraph 215 states that 12 months after the publication of the NPPF (2012) 
due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans according to 
their degree of consistency with the NPPF, with the closer the policies in the 
plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the weight that may be given.  
This is of relevance to the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Core 
Strategy and Development Management Policies (CSDMP) (2016) and the 
City of Lincoln Local Plan 1998. 

 
Paragraph 216 advises that weight may also be given to relevant policies 
contained within emerging plans with greater weight being afforded to taking 
into account their stage of preparation and/or the extent to which there are 
unresolved objections to relevant policies. This is of relevance to the Draft Site 
Locations Document – Preferred Site and Areas of the Lincolnshire Mineral 
and Waste Local Plan (December 2015) and the Submission Draft Central 
Lincolnshire Local Plan (April 2016) which is currently undergoing 
Examination. 

 
24. National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) (October 2014) - requires that in 

the determination of planning applications consideration is given to the impact 
of the waste development on the surrounding area, pushing waste up the 
Waste Hierarchy and contains a set of locational criteria against which 
proposals for new waste development should be assessed, including 
protection of water quality and flood risk management, landscape and visual 
impacts, nature conservation, conserving the historic environment, traffic and 
access, odour and noise. 

 
Local Plan Context 
 
25. Lincolnshire Minerals a Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy & Development 

Management Policies (CSDMP) (June 2016) – this document was formally 
adopted on 1 June 2016 and as a recently adopted document the policies 
contained therein should be given great weight in the determination of planning 
applications.  The key policies of relevance in this case are as follows 
(summarised): 

 
Policy W1 (Future requirements for new waste facilities) directs the County 
Council, through the Sites Allocation document, to identify location for a range 
of new or extended waste management facilities within Lincolnshire where 
these are necessary to meet the predicted capacity gaps for waste arisings in 
the County. 

 
Policy W3 (Spatial Strategy for New Waste Facilities) states that proposals for 
new waste facilities, including extensions to existing waste facilities, will be 

Page 29



permitted in and around main urban areas subject to the criteria of Policy W4.  
One of the main urban areas identified includes Lincoln. 

 
Policy W4 (Locational Criteria for New Waste Facilities) states new facilities 
will be permitted in and around the main urban areas provided they would be 
located in appropriate locations/sites (as identified) and accord with all relevant 
Development Management Policies set out in the plan.  Such locations/sites 
include: 

 

 previously developed and/or contaminated land; or 

 existing or planned industrial/employment land and buildings; and 
 

Policy DM1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) states that 
when considering development proposals, the County Council will take a 
positive approach.  Planning applications that accord with the policies in this 
Local Plan will be approved without delay, unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

 
Policy DM2 (Climate Change) states that proposals for minerals and waste 
management developments should address the following matters where 
applicable: 

 

 Minerals and Waste – Locations which reduce distances travelled by HCVs 
in the supply of minerals and the treatment of waste; and 

 Waste – Implement the Waste Hierarchy and reduce waste to landfill; 
 

Policy DM3 (Quality of Life and Amenity) states that planning permission will 
be granted for minerals and waste development provided that it does not 
generate unacceptable adverse impacts arising. 

 
Policy DM6 (Impact on Townscape) – provided that due regard has been given 
to the likely impact of the proposed development on the townscape including 
valued and important views.  Development that would result in residual, 
adverse visual impacts will only be approved if the impacts are acceptable 
when weighed against the benefits of the scheme. 

 
Policy DM13 (Sustainable Transport Movements) states that developments 
should seek to minimise road based transport. 

 
Policy DM14 (Transport by Road) states that planning permission will be 
granted for minerals and waste development involving transport by road where 
the highways network is of appropriate standard for use by the traffic 
generated by the development and arrangements for site access would not 
have an unacceptable impact on highway safety, free flow of traffic, residential 
amenity or the environment. 

 
Policy DM15 (Flooding and Flood Risk) states that waste developments will 
need to demonstrate that they would not increase the risk of flooding to the 
surrounding area. 

 

Page 30



Policy DM16 (Water Resources) states that planning permission will be 
granted where due regard is given to water conservation and efficiency. 

 
Policy DM17 (Cumulative Impacts) states that planning permission will be 
granted for minerals and waste developments where the cumulative impact 
would not result in significant adverse impacts. 

 
26. City of Lincoln Local Plan 1998 – as confirmed by the NPPF, due weight 

should be given to relevant policies within the plan according to their degree of 
consistency with the policies of the NPPF.  The following policies are of most 
relevance to this proposal: 

 
Policy 34 (Design and Amenity Standards) which seeks new building to be of a 
scale, mass, height, design and external appearance that complements the 
townscape character of the locality and where the amenities which occupiers 
of neighbouring properties may reasonably expect to enjoy must not be 
harmed by, or as a result of, the development; 

 
Policy 38A (Contaminated Land) states that where it is known or strongly 
suspected that contamination may exist on or adjacent to a proposed site, 
developers will be required to undertake investigations and  provide details of 
measures to deal with the contamination.  However, where there is only a 
suspicion that land may be contaminated or where evidence suggests there 
may be only slight contamination, a condition will be attached to a planning 
permission requiring that development must not start until a site investigation 
and assessment has been carried out. 

 
Policy 38B (Landfill) states that where development proposals within 250 
metres of land which is, (or has, within the last thirty years, been) used for the 
deposit of refuse or waste, shall incorporate a statement explaining the 
presence of, or potential for, migrating substances such as landfill gas and 
what mitigating measures are to be included within those development 
proposals. Planning permission will not be granted in the absence of 
satisfactory details and mitigation proposals. 

 
Policy 38F (Flood Risk) requires all proposed development to consider Flood 
Risk elsewhere. 

 
Policy 40 (Foul/Sewerage Disposal) directs proposed developments to 
address the management of the disposal of foul water and sewerage. 

 
Policy 44A (Critical Natural Assets) seeks to protect other critical natural 
assets from adjacent development that may harm ecological, landscape 
qualities and interest of the site and the designated area. 

 
Policy 44B (Basic Natural Stock) seeks to protect the ecological, landscape, 
recreational or other amenity value or interest of the area. 

 
Policy 52A (Green Wedge) seeks to protect green space within the city. 

 

Page 31



Policy 67A (Existing Allocations for Business and Industry) states that planning 
permission will be granted, at locations listed, for the development and 
changes of use between business, general industrial, storage and distribution, 
or other use, as specified: 

 
IB19 Land north of Long Leys Road – B1(c) any industrial process which can 
be carried out in a residential area without detriment to the amenity of that 
area.  

 
Where an existing use, in the above location, does not conform to the range of 
uses set out above, planning permission will be granted for its further 
development, provided it does not worsen the quality of the environment or 
conflict with other policy objectives. 

 
Policy 104 (Long Leys Urban Village) states that Additional development 
proposed as part of the present industrial uses at the Albion Works area will be 
approved where it: 

 

 is contained within the present curtilage of the industrial area as shown on 
the Proposals Map; 
 

 does not impinge adversely on neighbours' amenities, through noise, 
vibration, fumes, smell, soot, ash, dust, grit or other pollution, including 
from traffic generation and visual intrusion. 

  
27.  Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) (Proposed Submission Draft – April 

2016) – this plan will eventually replace the current Local Plans for the City of 
Lincoln, West Lindsey and North Kesteven District Councils.  Given its stage of 
preparation, in line with paragraph 216 of the NPPF, the policies contained 
within this document currently carry more weight in the determination of 
planning applications, given that the plan is now at the examination stage.  The 
key draft policies that are of relevance in this case are as follows: 

 
Policy LP1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) emphasises 
the need to take a positive approach in the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development contained in the NPPF where there are no 
identifiable adverse impacts. 

 
Policy LP2 (The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy) defines the Lincoln 
Urban Area in respect of job opportunities. 

  
Policy LP5 (Delivering Prosperity and Jobs) identifies important established 
employment areas and permitted uses.  This includes Long Leys Road and 
identifies the existing/suitable uses as those falling within B1, B2 and B8. 

 
Policy LP14 (Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk) states that all 
development will demonstrate how the water environment is protected 
including efficient use of water and not adversely affecting surface and ground 
water quality and provide adequate foul water disposal. 

 

Page 32



Policy LP16 (Development of Land affected by Contamination) states that new 
development will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that the site is 
suitable for its proposed use. 

 
Policy LP17 (Landscape, Townscape and Views) seeks to protect and 
enhance the intrinsic value of our townscape including cumulative impacts. 

 
Policy LP18 (Climate Change and Low Carbon Living) supports development 
where proposals contribute towards minimising water consumption and travel. 

 
Policy LP21 (Green Wedges) states that development proposals adjacent 
should demonstrate that they do not adversely impact on the function of the 
Green Wedge. 

  
Policy LP26 (Design and Amenity) requires developments to demonstrate 
efficient use of land, relate well to site and surroundings and how the amenity 
of neighbouring residents and land users have been considered. 

 
Results of Consultation and Publicity 
 
28. (a) Local County Council Member, Councillor Robert Parker – has indicated 

that he will speak at the Planning and Regulation Committee meeting but 
has provided a statement (summarised). 

 
  I have been County Councillor for this area for nearly 28 years and have 

lived nearby for over 30 years so know the area pretty well.  I agree with 
and support the detailed objections submitted on behalf of local residents 
and businesses and ask that serious account is taken of that but also 
would expand with regard to: 

   

 Land Use:  The proposed use does not accord with the City of 
Lincoln Local Plan 1998 which designates use of land north of Long 
Leys Road as being in class B1 (office and small scale industrial) and 
conflicts with Policy 104 of the Local Plan created the Long Leys 
Urban Village Special Policy Zone which says, 'Additional 
development proposed as part of the present industrial uses at the 
Albion Works area will be approved where it…does not impinge 
adversely on neighbours' amenities.  I would suggest that such an 
approach by the applicant flies in the face of National Planning Policy 
Framework Policy 17 which is about empowering local people to 
shape their surroundings. 

 

 Physical Impact:  concerns about dust, noise, odour and light 
pollution in a mostly residential community, the scale, massing and 
height of the proposed building is out of keeping with the concept of 
the Long Leys Urban Village. 

 

 Traffic:  safety implications associated with traffic movements into 
and out of the site with the increased number of lorry movements.  I 
am Chair of the Carholme Community Forum, which also operates as 

Page 33



the local Policing Forum, and 'Speeding along Long Leys Road' is 
one of the three Local Policing Priorities.  Many of the local children 
attend the three nearby primary schools and walk along Long Leys 
Road twice a day.  The access road to the site crosses the public 
footpath, will increase the risk of accidents to pedestrians and 
children. 

 

 Community:  Under this heading, Alex Rosen and Joanne Mead on 
behalf of residents set out detailed and realistic concerns about dust, 
noise, odour and light pollution and I have nothing to add.  

 
I submit that the application should be refused. 

 
(b) Environment Agency (EA) – has no objection but requested that an 

informative be attached in respect of Environmental Permitting and the 
storage of fuel/oil. 

 
(c) Environmental Health Officer (Lincoln City Council) – identified that the 

site may be on or in the vicinity of contaminated land and advised that a 
risk assessment be carried out prior to development commencing or a 
condition be attached to a decision to carry out an assessment prior to 
commencement of the development.  The EHO also commented that the 
submitted noise assessment appears to have been undertaken according 
to relevant accepted guidance and would not dispute the conclusions of 
the report.  However, recommends that the hours of work during the 
construction period be restricted to protect the amenity of local residential 
properties.    

 
 With regard to odour, the proposal would be subject to an approved 

odour management plan under the terms of an Environment Agency 
Environmental Permit and in isolation is considered unlikely to have any 
significant impact on air quality but may contribute through a cumulative 
impact.  However, this impact could be to be mitigated through the 
introduction of the provision of electric vehicle recharge points. 

 
(d) Highways and Lead Local Flood Authority – requests that a condition be 

attached to ensure that the arrangements shown on the submitted plans 
for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the site are kept free 
from obstruction and available at all times and to ensure that vehicles 
wait clear of the carriageway off Long Leys Road and enter and leave the 
highway in a forward gear.  It is also advised that the widening of the 
access onto Long Leys Road will need to be carried out and that these 
works would need to be agreed and secured by way of a Minor Works 
Agreement.  It is therefore recommended that an Informative be attached 
to any decision notice issued advising the applicant of this requirement.  

 
(e) Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue – advises that the water main on Long Leys 

Road is of a reasonable size and acknowledges that the applicant is 
proposing to install a water tank and pump which can be used for 
firefighting purposes.  

Page 34



 
(f) Anglian Water Services (AWS) – confirmed that the foul water drainage 

strategy is acceptable.  The surface water drainage strategy is also 
acceptable in principle, however, it is commented that a discharge rate 
from the site would need to be established/agreed.  AWS requested an 
informative be attached with regard to the Water Industry Act 1991. 

 
29. The application has been publicised by notices posted at the site and in the 

local press (Lincolnshire Echo on 27 October 2016) and 26 letters of 
notification were sent to the nearest neighbouring residents.  At the time this 
report was prepared two representations of support and 349 representations of 
objection had been received from local households, elected members of City 
of Lincoln Council, representatives of residents living in Albion Close, the 
residents associations for Long Leys Road and the West End, Cycling UK 
(Lincolnshire), the Lincoln Astronomical Society and local businesses.  The 
comments received have been summarised/categorised as follows: 

 

 Heavy Goods Vehicles – the increase in vehicle movements will have a 
detrimental effect on the highways infrastructure and safety of cyclists, 
pedestrians and residents, with particular concern for the safety of children. 

 Hours of work – objections on the grounds that the operations proposed 
would be 24 hours a day and seven days a week and that this would have 
an unacceptable impact on local residents. 

 Energy from Waste facility – objections have been received stating that the 
proposed energy plant is not appropriate in a residential area. 

 Fuel manufacture – objections on the grounds that the development would 
introduce an industrial process into this locality which is not compatible with 
the nearby residential area. 

 Landfill – objects received considered it inappropriate to re-open a dump in 
close proximity to residential properties.  

 Odour –the wastes being brought to the site would be malodorous. 

 Noise – that the site operating 24 hours a day and seven days a week 
would result in unacceptable noise levels, particularly at night. 

 Fire – the waste being fuel presents an unacceptable fire risk. 

 Vermin – the waste will attract rats, flies and birds. 

 Litter – windblown litter will affect the area. 

 Visual – the scale and design of the building is unacceptable in a 
residential area and would have a visual impact on West Common and the 
West End. 

 Flood Risk – the proposed development would contribute to flood risk. 

 Natural Environment – the proposed development is a threat to protected 
wildlife on the West Common and Hobbler's Hole. 

 Open Space – the proposed development would pose a health risk to those 
using West Common and Whitton's Park. 

 Urban Village – the development is inappropriate in close proximity to Long 
Leys Urban Village. 

 Health – the proposed development will have a detrimental effect on the 
physical and mental health of local residents. 

 

Page 35



District Council’s Recommendations 
 
30. City of Lincoln Council has commented that when considered in context with 

the existing adjacent commercial buildings, the proposed new building would 
be acceptable.  However, the proposed use is not considered to be 
appropriate in this location given the potential impacts upon adjacent 
residential properties and those in the wider area through noise and 
disturbance as a result of the site operations and increased vehicle 
movements.  

 
31. It is added that whilst the proposed hours of operation for the waste transfer 

operations have been cited, the hours of work for the existing operations would 
continue and although the supporting statement advises that it is unlikely for 
future operations to be undertaken at night, the applicant wishes to retain this 
flexibility as a contingency.  The council is concerned that the applicant would 
seek an unrestricted consent which would therefore exacerbate the impacts 
upon the amenities of nearby residential properties and as such it is concluded 
that the site is not appropriate and would be better suited to a larger industrial 
estate where there is not such a close relationship with neighbouring 
properties.  Overall it is therefore concluded that the proposal would be 
contrary to the City of Lincoln Local Plan Policies 34 and 67A and also 
guidance within National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Conclusion 
 
32. The key statutory test for determining planning applications is set out in 

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Act 2004 which states that 
regard is to be had to the Development Plan for the purposes of any 
determination to be made under the Planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the Plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 

 
33. The key issues to consider in relation to this application are the principle of the 

development in this location and whether the development would give rise to 
any potentially adverse environmental and/or amenity impacts (e.g. visual, 
noise, traffic, etc.) such that the development would be unacceptable and 
therefore warrants refusal. 

 
Need 
 
34. Policy W1 of the CSDMP supports the development of waste management 

facilities where these are necessary to meet the predicted capacity gaps for 
waste arisings in the County.  In this case the proposed development would 
receive dry mixed recyclables and source segregated plastics, card and glass 
collected from commercial and industrial premises largely within Lincolnshire.  
Table 10 of the CSDMP (which supports Policy W1) confirms that there is a 
capacity gap in the short term of 75,000 tonnes per annum to deal with such 
commercial and industrial waste streams and this facility would therefore go 
some way towards meeting this identified capacity gap and need.  The facility 
would enable trade wastes to be segregated and prepared ready for recovery 

Page 36



and re-use elsewhere and thus help to reduce the overall quantity of wastes 
that may otherwise go to landfill.  The proposed development does therefore 
represent a sustainable waste management practice and would help to move 
the management of wastes up the waste hierarchy in line with the principles 
and objectives of the NPPF, NPPW and Policies W1, DM1 and DM2 of the 
CSDMP. 

 
Locational Criteria 

 
35. In terms of location, although the proposal site is not one listed in the emerging 

Site Locations document of the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan, 
this does not necessarily mean that the establishment of a waste management 
operation on this site is unacceptable.  Instead proposals for new or extended 
waste management sites will be supported where they accord with the spatial 
and locational criteria set out in Policies W3 and W4 of the CSDMP and where 
they are capable of being operated without giving rise to any unacceptable 
adverse environmental or amenity impacts. 

 
36. Policy W3 of the CSDMP states that proposals for new waste facilities will be 

permitted in and around the main urban areas.  Lincoln is identified as such an 
area and Policy W4 expands upon this policy stating that within such areas 
preference would be given to developments proposed on sites/locations 
including previously developed and/or contaminated land or existing or 
planned industrial/employment land and buildings. 

 
37. In this case, the proposal site was formerly a brickworks and to the rear of the 

site is the former Albion Works Landfill site and so constitutes previously 
developed land.  The site also forms part of a wider area which already houses 
a range of existing B1(c), B2 and B8 uses and is land that is identified and 
planned for future industrial/employment uses as confirmed by Policy 67A 
(IB19) of the adopted City of Lincoln Local Plan and Policy LP5 of the 
emerging CLLP).  Given the site being within the operational area of an 
existing B1 Use, the proposal site is considered to be a suitable location for the 
establishment of this type of waste management use and would not conflict 
with the locational criteria set out in Policies W3 and W4 of the CSDMP nor 
conflict or compromise Policy 67A of City of Lincoln Local Plan and Policy LP5 
of the emerging CLLP.  However, before the development can be considered 
acceptable it must also accord with the other relevant policies as contained 
within the Development Plan which includes demonstrating that the 
development would not result in unacceptable adverse environmental and 
amenity impacts. 

 
General Environmental and Amenity Considerations 
 
Townscape, Green Wedge, Natural Environment and Visual Impact 
 
38. The NPPF and NPPW together with Policy DM6 of the CSDMP advise that 

due regard should be given to the likely impact of a proposed development on 
the townscape and important views.  These aims and objectives are reiterated 
in Policies 34 and 52A of the City of Lincoln Local Plan and Policies LP2, 

Page 37



LP17, LP21 and LP26 of the emerging CLLP which seek to protect and 
enhance the character of the City and to ensure that the design and layout of 
new development takes into account the impacts on the surrounding area. 

 
39. A number of objectors have expressed concerns that the scale of the proposed 

new building would inappropriate in a residential area and that the 
development would impact adversely on the ecology of the area.  The 
proposed new building would be within the curtilage of an existing industrial 
area and, although larger than the existing building to be demolished, would be 
of a similar height and finish to existing buildings in the wider employment 
area.  The orientation of the proposed building would also screen views into 
the operational area of the site from Albion Close to the north and Yarborough 
Road/Burton Road to the north east and views from Whitton's Park, Hobbler's 
Hole (SNCI), West Common (SNCI) and Long Leys Road (including the 
property immediately abutting the site to the south and west and the Long Leys 
Urban Village further to the north of the site) would be screened by existing 
industrial buildings, the gradient of the surrounding landform and existing 
hedges and trees.  The City of Lincoln's response acknowledges that the size 
and scale of the proposed building is considered acceptable and therefore they 
have not raised an objection to the proposals on these grounds.  Similarly, 
your Officers are satisfied that the building itself would not be out of scale or 
context when viewed in relation to adjacent commercial buildings and therefore 
would be acceptable.  In terms of potential impacts on ecology, the proposals 
affect land that is already in active use as a depot and vehicle repair workshop 
and Officers are satisfied that the development would not therefore adversely 
affect the ecology of the area given the building and associated works are not 
within or adjacent to protected areas. 

 
40. Consequently, if planning permission were to be granted then Officers are 

satisfied that the proposed building would be acceptable in terms of its size, 
scale and design and the activities and operations associated with the site 
would not harm the natural environment and therefore would not conflict nor 
compromise Policies 34, 44A, 44B, 52A and 104 of the City of Lincoln Local 
Plan and Policies LP2, LP17, LP21 and LP26 of the CLLP that seek design 
and scale of a development appropriate to its surroundings that do not impact 
on townscapes, important views, the natural environment or the Green Wedge. 

  
Noise, Air Quality, Dust, Odour, Vermin and Litter 

 
41. The submitted noise assessment identifies the potential sources of impact 

during the construction and operational stages of the Waste Transfer Station 
during the proposed hours of work.  In both instances the predicted noise 
levels are within acceptable limits and the EHO of the City of Lincoln has 
confirmed that subject to the imposition of a condition to restrict the hours of 
working, noise arising from the development and construction phase (being 
temporary) would not have an unacceptable impact on the amenity of nearby 
residents.   

 
42. The proposed waste handling operations, including the unloading/loading of 

wastes, storage, shredding and baling of waste products, would take place 

Page 38



wholly within the confines of the building.  All vehicles exiting the site would be 
sheeted or containerised and external to the buildings the site would be 
routinely inspected for fugitive materials.  The odour assessment submitted in 
support of the application concludes that the proposed waste streams are 
unlikely to generate odours as they would be inert and unlikely to contain food 
or other putrescible wastes.  Notwithstanding this, the applicant has proposed 
to incorporate an odour suppression spray system within those parts of the 
building receiving the wastes and where the general/residual wastes would be 
shredded to produce RDF.  This system would also act as a means to 
suppress any dust should this arise from the handling of the wastes and 
therefore further minimise the potential for fugitive emissions from the site. 

 
43. Although objections have been received on the grounds that the site would 

generate litter and attract vermin the applicant has stated that the site would 
be inspected by a specialised pest control contractor and where necessary 
action taken to eradicate vermin should they be identified.  The site would also 
be routinely inspected and any wastes/litter escaping the building would be 
collected in line with the operational conditions and controls that would be 
expected to be imposed as part of an Environmental Permit (issued and 
monitored by the Environment Agency).  The NPPF makes clear that planning 
and pollution control systems, are separate and advises that local planning 
authorities should not duplicate the functions of the statutory pollution control 
bodies in regulating emissions.  Therefore whilst the pollution and planning 
system are complementary in many respects, the planning system should 
focus on whether the development itself is an acceptable use of the land rather 
than the control of processes or emissions themselves.  Although the 
representations from local residents about litter and vermin are therefore 
noted, having considered the proposals and given the lack of objection from 
the Environment Agency or Environmental Health Officer it is considered the 
nature of the waste prepared to be accepted at the site that the controls 
imposed by an Environmental Permit would be appropriate. 

 
44. Consequently, from a purely land-use planning perspective in relation only to 

the operations of the waste transfer station, if planning permission were to be 
granted then Officers are satisfied that the proposed development could be 
operated so as to not be contrary to the objectives identified in Policy DM3 of 
CSDMP and not conflict nor compromise Policies 34 and 104 of the City of 
Lincoln Local Plan and Policy LP26 of the emerging CLLP which seeks to 
mitigate the emissions/impacts arising from the installation of the proposed 
development. 
 

Fire Risk 
 
45. Other than glass, the applicant has indicated that no wastes or RDF would be 

retained on site for a period longer than one day.  As a result, the potential for 
large volumes of wastes to accumulate at the site and therefore the risks and 
impact of any fire should this occur would be reduced.  To further minimise and 
address any risk, a sprinkler system would be installed within the proposed 
waste transfer building and this would be fed by a dedicated water tank and 
pump house facility which would be triggered in the event of a fire.  The 

Page 39



Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue Service have been consulted on this application 
and have commented there is also an existing water main on Long Leys Road 
which could be used to provide sufficient water in the event of a fire and 
therefore have raised no objections to the application but still welcome the 
proposed installation of a dedicated on-site firewater system. 

 
Flood Risk, Drainage and Water Resources 
 
46. Whilst the proposal site does not fall within Flood Zones 2 or 3 and is not of 

such a scale as to require a full Flood Risk Assessment, being less than one 
hectare, an assessment of the site to contribute to flooding elsewhere has 
been conducted and consideration has been given to how surface and foul 
waters from the redeveloped site would be managed.   

 
47. Following an investigation into the existing drainage arrangements serving the 

site, the applicant submitted a drainage strategy/plan which proposes that the 
majority of surface waters from the site would continue to be managed and 
discharged via the existing Anglian Water Services (AWS) infrastructure.  In 
order to ensure that surface waters do not give rise to flooding off-site or 
increase discharge rates over and above the existing level the applicant has 
indicated that an attenuation tank would be installed as part of the sites 
drainage in order to control the rate of discharge should AWS consider this 
necessary.  For foul waters this would continue to be managed via the existing 
sewer network whilst the limited volume of foul water derived from the 
redeveloped waste transfer station building and wash out facility would be 
directed to a sealed sump where it would be collected and retained until such 
time as it is necessary to tanker this off for disposal and treatment elsewhere.  
AWS has confirmed that in principle the proposed drainage arrangements are 
acceptable although further details, including any agreed discharge rate would 
still need to be confirmed.  If planning permission were to be granted then such 
detail could be appropriately handled and agreed by way of a scheme required 
by a planning condition.  Such a condition would ensure that the proposed 
development complies with Policy DM15 of the CSDMP and would not conflict 
with nor compromise Policies 38F and 40 of the City of Lincoln Local Plan and 
Policy LP14 of the emerging CLLP which seeks to protect property elsewhere 
from flood and manage foul and surface water.  Furthermore, in line with the 
objectives of Policy DM16 of the CSDMP the proposed relocated vehicle 
wash-out facility would incorporate a water re-circulation system which would 
therefore reduce water consumption at the site and thereby conform with the 
objectives of Policy LP18 of the emerging CLLP. 

 
Contaminated Land 
 
48. The proposal site is adjacent to the former Albion Works Landfill site which 

received inert waste and closed in 2002.  Given the close proximity of the 
former landfill site the City of Lincoln EHO has therefore commented that a 
contaminated land risk assessment should be carried out or that a condition be 
attached to a decision issued which would require an assessment to be 
undertaken prior to commencement of the development.   

 

Page 40



49. The EHO's comments are noted however your Officers do not consider it 
reasonable or necessary to require such an assessment to be undertaken prior 
to the determination of the application.  This is because the landfill site 
identified was used to dispose of inert wastes only and closed a number of 
years ago.  The applicant is also responsible for the aftercare of the former 
landfill site and as part of their Environmental Permit for that site has to carry 
out regular audits in order to monitor landfill gas and leachate levels.  Those 
audits have not indicated that leachate or gas levels from the site are at levels 
or concentrations that are excessive and therefore pose a low risk to the 
environment and surrounding land.  Furthermore, the excavation works 
required to be carried out as part of this development (e.g. erection of the 
steels associated with the new building and installation of the underground 
surface water attenuation tank) are minor is scale and would be undertaken on 
land outside of the immediate boundary of the old landfill site and therefore 
affect land that has already previously been disturbed and developed.  Given 
these circumstances it is your Officers view that the risk and presence of 
contaminated land within the footprint of this site is unlikely to be high.  
However, and in acknowledgement of the advice and comments of the EHO, if 
planning permission were to be granted then a condition could be imposed 
which would ensure that in the event that any contamination is found during 
those minor works that the applicant is required to submit a mitigation strategy 
for the approval of officers and this would therefore ensure that any necessary 
remedial measures are secured.  The imposition of such a condition would be 
in line with, and not contrary to, the objectives of Policies 38A and 38B of City 
of Lincoln Local Plan or Policy LP16 of the emerging CLLP. 

 
Transport  

 
50. Local residents have raised objections on the grounds of the level of vehicle 

movements and the potential impacts on highways safety for cyclists and 
pedestrians (particularly children).  As reported, the proposed development 
would be accessed using an existing entrance off Long Leys Road which is 
currently used by several other commercial operations/businesses including 
the applicants' existing permitted use as offices, depot and vehicle repair 
workshop.   

 
51. The proposed waste transfer station would receive materials which would be 

brought to the site by the existing fleet of RCVs.  In addition to these RCVs, 
further vehicles would be used to remove the bulk loads of segregated waste, 
glass and RDF and in total it has been calculated that the site would generate 
between 24 to 50 movements per day.  The whole site has been configured to 
enable vehicles to wait off the public highway and to enter and leave the site in 
a forward gear as required by the Highways Officer.  Following clarification and 
further details to demonstrate the configuration and size of site entrance onto 
Long Leys Road, the Highways Officer has confirmed that they have no 
objection to the proposal subject to the imposition of conditions and that minor 
improvements to the access be undertaken (e.g. widening within the public 
highway boundary).  The widening works would require a separate approval 
from the Highways Authority by way of 'Minor Works Agreement' and an 
Informative is therefore recommended which reminds the applicant of the need 

Page 41



to secure such an agreement.  Whilst the use of such an Informative would be 
acceptable, if planning permission were to be granted then this would also 
need to be reinforced by way of a planning condition which would require 
details of the proposed access improvement works to also be submitted for the 
approval of the Waste Planning Authority.  Consequently, although the 
objections and local residents concerns about the impact of the development 
on highway safety are noted, Officers are satisfied that the proposed 
development, with improvements to the access which could be secured by 
planning condition, would be capable of being operated without having an 
adverse impact on these grounds and therefore be in line with the objectives of 
the NPPF, NPPW and Policies DM13 and DM14 of the CSDMP and would not 
conflict with nor compromise Policy LP18 of the CLLP. 

 
Hours of Operation   

 
52. The construction period associated with this proposal would extend to around 

35 weeks and the waste transfer station hours of operation are proposed to be 
limited to between 07:00 to 18:00 hours (Monday to Friday) 07:00 to 17:00 
hours (Saturdays) with no operations on Sundays and Public Holidays.  
Although the applicant has indicated that the waste transfer station operations 
would be restricted, they have stated that the hours of operation associated 
with the existing use of the site would continue to operate without restriction.  
The City of Lincoln EHO has raised no objection to the proposals (subject to 
conditions) however the City of Lincoln (Planning) has raised concerns over 
the fact that the applicant does wish to continue the existing permitted 
use/operations without restriction.  The City of Lincoln (Planning) is therefore 
concerned that the continuation of such an unrestricted consent could 
exacerbate the impacts of the development upon the amenities of nearby 
residential properties. 

 
53. The concerns raised by the City of Lincoln (Planning) are noted and it is 

agreed that given the applicant's proposed continued and dual use of the site 
(e.g. as a waste transfer station and continuation of the existing permitted use) 
difficulties could arise in terms of differentiating between the hours of operation 
and activities associated with one use and that of another.  For example, it 
would not be possible to differentiate between RCVs accessing the site to 
discharge loads of waste (i.e. associated with the proposed waste transfer 
use) and RCVs accessing the office depot and workshop (i.e. which could take 
place outside the hours of operation proposed for the waste transfer station).  
Consequently, in order to prevent any conflict or issues in terms of 
enforcement, Officers feel that it would be necessary to ensure that the hours 
of operation for all activities are the same.  Although planning conditions are 
typically imposed and used as a means to control development, the imposition 
of a condition to restrict the hours of operation for the whole of the site is not 
considered feasible.  This is because such a condition would be seeking to 
restrict an existing permitted development/use which is not subject of this 
application and also it would not be possible to word or impose a condition that 
would be sufficiently precise or enforceable.  Such a condition would therefore 
fail to meet the tests and requirements as set out in NPPF (i.e. conditions must 
be necessary, relevant to planning and the development permitted, 

Page 42



enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects) and so could not be 
imposed.  Consequently, in the absence of such a condition, the only means of 
ensuring that suitable control could be gained over the hours of operation and 
thus ensure that the impacts of the development are line with those as 
assessed, Officers are of the opinion that it would be necessary for the 
applicant to enter into a Section 106 Planning Obligation which would require 
them to apply the same hours of operation for all the different activities within 
the application site.  The applicant has been invited to enter into such an 
agreement but has refused to do so. 

 
54. As the applicant has failed to agree to enter into such an agreement, if 

planning permission were to be granted it would not therefore be possible to 
separately control the hours of operation for the waste transfer use.  As the 
potential noise impacts arising from that use (in combination with the existing 
permitted use) during the night-time hours have not been assessed, then the 
proposals (as submitted) have not demonstrated that they could be carried 
without restricted hours of operation and therefore have the potential to have 
an unacceptable impact on the amenity of nearby residents.  It is therefore 
considered that the proposed development would not meet the aims and 
objectives of the NPPF, NPPW and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the CSDMP 
which seeks sustainable development without harming the amenities of 
neighbouring residents and land users and would conflict with those elements 
of Policies 34, 67A and 104 of the City of Lincoln Local Plan and Policies LP1 
and LP26 which seek to protect the amenities of the residents of the area and 
Long Leys Urban Village.  

 
Other Objections/Comments 
 
55. A number of representations have been received which have raised concerns 

or objections to the development on the grounds that the development would 
constitute an Energy from Waste Plant/Incinerator and/or that the applicant 
proposes to re-open the old landfill site or create a new landfill facility.  These 
comments/objections are based on a misunderstanding or misinterpretation 
regarding the nature of the activities and operations proposed and the contents 
of the applicants' submission/application.  For the avoidance of doubt, and as 
explained within this report, this application proposes to operate a waste 
transfer station at the site and consequently the comments/objections received 
on the grounds indicated above are not considered to be relevant or material 
to the determination of this application. 

 
Human Rights Implications 
 
56. The proposed development has been considered against Human Rights 

implications especially with regard to Article 8 – right to respect for private and 
family life and Protocol 1, Article 1 – protection of property and balancing the 
public interest and well – being of the community within these rights and the 
Council has had due regard to its public sector equality duty under Section 149 
of the Equality Act 2010. 

 

Page 43



Final Conclusions 
 

57. The proposed development is accepted as being a sustainable waste 
management practice and is acceptable in terms of its broad location.  It is 
also accepted that many of the potential environmental impacts arising from 
the operations of the waste transfer station could be mitigated, minimised or 
reduced through the implementation of the mitigation measures proposed 
within the application and/or through the imposition of planning conditions.  
However, given the applicant's proposed continued and dual use of the site 
difficulties could arise in terms of differentiating between the hours of operation 
and activities associated with one use and that of another.  As the potential 
noise impacts arising from the proposed waste transfer use (in combination 
with the existing permitted use) during the evening and night-time hours have 
not been assessed, then the proposals (as submitted) have not demonstrated 
that they could be carried without restricted hours of operation and therefore 
have the potential to have an unacceptable impact on the amenity of nearby 
residents. 

 
58. The imposition of a planning condition in order to restrict the hours of operation 

for the waste transfer use would not be possible as such a condition would fail 
to be sufficiently precise and enforceable and therefore fail the necessary tests 
as set out in the NPPF.  Therefore the only means of ensuring that suitable 
control could be gained over the development would be for the applicant to 
enter into a Planning Obligation which would require them to apply the same 
hours of operation for all the operations that benefit from planning permission 
within the application site.  The use of such an Obligation is considered to be 
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, is directly 
related to the development and fairly and reasonable related in scale and kind 
to the development.  However, the applicant has failed to agree to enter into 
such an Obligation and without this the development has the potential to have 
an unacceptable impact on the amenity of nearby residents. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That planning permission be refused for the following reason: 

 
The proposed development represents a sustainable waste management practice 
and is acceptable in terms of its broad location.  However, given the applicant's 
proposed continued and dual use of the site difficulties could arise in terms of 
differentiating between the hours of operation and activities associated with one use 
and that of another.  The imposition of a planning condition in order to restrict the 
hours of operation for the waste transfer use would not be sufficiently precise and 
enforceable and the applicant has refused to enter into a Planning Obligation in order 
to restrict the hours of operation for the whole site.  Without the ability to impose a 
planning condition or secure a Planning Obligation, it would not be possible to control 
the hours of operation associated with the waste transfer operations and therefore 
these could potentially be carried out 24 hours a day.  As the potential noise impacts 
arising from that use (in combination with the existing permitted use) during the 
evening and night-time hours have not been assessed, then the proposals have not 

Page 44



demonstrated that they could be carried without having an unacceptable impact on 
the amenity of nearby residents. 
 
The Waste Planning Authority contends that the benefits of the proposed 
development are considered to be outweighed by the potential impacts of evening 
and night-time noise on sensitive receptors of acknowledged importance.  Therefore 
planning permission is refused for failure to comply with the aims and objectives of 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the 
Lincolnshire Minerals & Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy & Development 
Management Policies (June 2016) and would conflict with Policies 34, 67A and 104 of 
the City of Lincoln Local Plan 1998 and Policy LP26 of the emerging Central 
Lincolnshire Local Plan. 
 
 
Appendix 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Committee Plan 

 
 

Page 45



Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were 
relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Application File 
L/1076/16 

Lincolnshire County Council, Planning, Witham Park 
House, Waterside South, Lincoln 

National Planning Policy 
Framework (2012) 

National Planning Policy 
for Waste (2014) 

The Government's website 
www.gov.uk 

Lincolnshire Minerals & 
Waste Local Plan: Core 
Strategy & Development 
Management Policies 
(CSDMP) (June 2016) 

Lincolnshire County Council website 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 

City of Lincoln Local Plan 
(1998) 

City of Lincoln Council website 
www.lincoln.gov.uk 
 

Emerging Plans Central 
Lincolnshire Local Plan 
(CLLP) (Proposed 
Submission Draft – April 
2016) 

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan 
www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/central-lincolnshire/ 
 
 
 

 
This report was written by Felicity Webber, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 
or dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Page 46

http://www.gov.uk/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
http://www.lincoln.gov.uk/
http://www.n-kesteven.gov.uk/central-lincolnshire/
mailto:dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Site of Application

Long Leys Road

LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Reproduced from the 1996 OS Mapping with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown

Copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to civil proceedings.

OS LICENCE 1000025370



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 6 FEBRUARY 2017

Prevailing Wind Direction from the south-west



Location:

Veolia Site
Long Leys Road
Lincoln

Application No:
Scale:  

L/1076/16

1:5000

Description:

To demolish an existing building, construct a new
building and operate a waste transfer station, including
the production of refuse derived fuel, with associated 
development including a new weighbridge, relocation of
existing wash bay, diesel tank and re-alignment of 
existing fence line.

Page 47

elaine.simpson
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



5. Lincoln 

P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



P
age 61



6. Coningsby 

P
age 62



Coningsby 

P
age 63



P
age 64



P
age 65



P
age 66



P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 Regulatory and Other Committee 
 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills  
Executive Director, Environment & Economy 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 6 February 2017 

Subject: County Council Development - (E)S35/2348/16 

 

Summary: 

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a free standing kitchen pod which 
will act as a "hub" providing meals for this and other local schools as well as the 
erection of a covered walkway and relocation of existing storage units and bike 
shelter at Coningsby St Michael's C of E Primary School, School Lane, Coningsby. 

The key issues to be considered in this case are the impacts of the use on the 
amenity of occupants of residential properties and highway functioning and safety. 

 

Recommendation: 

Following consideration of the relevant development plan policies and the 
comments received through consultation and publicity it is recommended that 
conditional planning permission be granted. 

 
Background 
 
1. Planning permission is sought to station a modular unit within the grounds of 

St Michael's Church of England Primary School, Coningsby.  The unit would 
function as a kitchen and produce hot meals predominantly for children 
attending the school although meals would also be prepared for children at 
two other local schools.  The application has been made as a result of the 
Central Government's partnership with schools, local authorities, caterers 
and parents which aims to transform the quality and provision of food in 
schools.  The improved food standards introduced in September 2009 need 
to be underpinned by good kitchen and dining facilities in schools in order 
that healthier school lunches can be provided in environments which 
encourage children to eat.  In response to this Lincolnshire County Council 
developed their strategy for the provision of hot school meals throughout the 
County and following the award of grants from the Department for Children, 
schools and families have developed a programme which seeks to provide 
kitchens and kitchen "hubs" at schools. 

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 6.



The Application 
 
2. Planning permission is sought for the erection of a free standing kitchen pod 

which will act as a "hub" providing meals for this and two other local schools.  
The proposal also proposes the erection of a covered walkway along with 
the relocation of existing storage units and bike shelter at Coningsby St 
Michael's C of E Primary School, School Lane, Coningsby.   
 

3. Currently hot meals are prepared off-site and brought to the school from 
elsewhere.  This proposal would enable the school to operate its own 
kitchen allowing freshly cooked, nutritious hot meals to be prepared for use 
both on-site as well by other Local Authority maintained schools which do 
not have the benefit of their own on-site kitchen facilities.  The kitchen pod 
and size/specification of the equipment installed within it would allow up to 
400 meals per day to be produced.  It is envisaged that around 250 of these 
meals would be consumed on-site with the remainder being exported to the 
other schools. 
 

4. The proposed kitchen pod is a modular unit (approximately 9.8m long by 
6.3m wide by 2.9m to the roof) and the external finish/colour would be 
'Poppy Red' with a 'Goosewing grey' coloured facia.  These colours have 
been deliberately chosen by the applicant in order to reflect the existing 
livery of the school.  In addition to the kitchen unit it is proposed to construct 
a covered walkway (approximately 21.5m long by 1.5m wide by 2.2 m high) 
which would be erected between the kitchen pod and the existing school.  
The proposed positioning of the kitchen pod would require the relocation of 
existing storage units and bike shelters within the school grounds.  Tree 
protection measures would also be employed during the installation of the 
unit in order to protect an attractive tree close to the site. 
 

5. The school states that the kitchen would operate from 07:30 and close at 
approximately 14:00 (Monday to Friday) and would be used solely for the 
purpose of providing meals for schools.  As a result, the kitchen would 
predominantly be closed outside term time although it may occasionally 
open for use on inset days, to carry out annual deep cleaning and for 
planned school holiday programmes. 
 

6. The kitchen is expected to generate three to four food deliveries per week 
(six to eight movements) and these would be scheduled either outside of 
normal school hours or at least not during peak periods.  There would be a 
further two visit/trips (four movements) per day associated with the 
transportation of meals off-site and the return of empty trays from other 
schools.  The school currently has a delivery (two movements) per day as a 
result of hot meals being brought into the school from elsewhere and these 
would cease should planning permission be granted for this development.  
 

7. Finally, the applicant states that the development would create three part-
time jobs and it is anticipated that staff would, if necessary, park in the 
school's car park. 

 

Page 70



 

 
 
 

Page 71



Site and Surroundings 
 
8. St Michael's Church of England School is centrally situated within 

Coningsby, to the west of Silver Street.  To the north of the school's 
boundary is a residential property with St Michael's Church beyond (Grade 1 
Listed Building).  To the east is School Lane which incorporates a 
roundabout for traffic management.  Along School Lane there are several 
residential properties and a Residential Care Home.  To the west is the 
village recreation ground and fields.  On the southern boundary of the 
school is a small cul-de-sac of bungalows. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9. The school site is bound by 2m green mesh metal security fencing, with 

some mature trees and hedging along sections of the boundary.  It is 
proposed to locate the kitchen pod immediately to the north of the school 
building on an area currently used for two storage buildings and a garage.  
Immediately to the north of the proposed site is an attractive mature tree 
which would be protected and retained a part of the development.  Two 
Public Rights of Way (refs: 224/1 and 224/2) run along the north and north-
west of the school boundary (approximately 50m from the site) beyond 
which there are a few residential properties.  The boundary of the nearest 
property is located 38m to the west of the proposal site and the kitchen pod 
itself would be 60m from property.  The boundary of the nearest property to 
the north of the site is located 58m distant.  The boundaries of these 
properties are screened from the site by close board wooden fencing and 
some hedging which runs along their boundary with the public footpath. 
 

Main Planning Considerations 
 
National Guidance 
 
10. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (March 2012) is a material 

planning consideration in the determination of planning applications and 
advocates a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  The main 
policies/statements set out in the NPPF which are relevant to this proposal 
are as follows: 
 

Page 72



Paragraph 7 - Sustainable development and the protection and 
enhancement of the historic environment 
Paragraph 14 - Sustainable development 
Paragraph 17 - Core planning principles, including the need to ensure that 
heritage assets are conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance 
Paragraph 32 – Promoting sustainable transport.  Decisions should take into 
account, amongst other matters, that development should only be prevented 
or refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of 
development are severe. 
Paragraph 56 – Requiring good design 
Paragraph 72 – Schools 
Paragraph 132 - Harm to a heritage asset through development within its 
setting 
Paragraph 133 and 134 - Any harm should be judged against the public 
benefits delivered by the proposal 
Paragraphs 186 & 187 – Positive and proactive decision making 
Paragraph 206 – Use of planning conditions 
Paragraphs 215 & 216 - Status of adopted and emerging Local Plans 
Adopted and Emerging Local Plan Context 

 
Local Plan Context 
 
11. East Lindsey Local Plan 1999 (ELLP) - as confirmed by the NPPF, due 

weight should be given to relevant policies within the Plan according to their 
degree of consistency with the policies of the NPPF.  The following policies 
are of relevance to this proposal: 
 
Policy A4 (Protection of General Amenities) states that development which 
unacceptably harms the general amenities of people living or working 
nearby will not be permitted; 
Policy A5 (Quality and Design of Development) states the development 
which, by its design, improves the quality of the environment will be 
permitted provided it does not conflict with other Policies of the Plan; 
Policy C2 (Development and Demolition affecting a Listed Building) states 
that permission will be given for development within the curtilage of or 
affects the setting of a Listed Building only where its form, scale, proportions 
and materials preserve or enhance the special architectural or historic 
interest, viability or long term use of the Building.        

 
12. East Lindsey Core Strategy (Publications Version) - November 2016 (ELCS) 

– this document forms part of the emerging East Lindsey Local Plan, it is 
currently out to consultation, which will end on 25 January 2017.  In line with 
paragraph 216 of the NPPF, given its stage of preparation, increased weight 
may be given to this document in the determination of this application, the 
following policies are of relevance to this proposal: 
 
Strategic Policy 10 (SP10) – Design states that support will be given to well-
designed sustainable developments, which maintain and enhance the 
character of the towns and villages, materials, layout, scale and massing 
should reflect the character of the surrounding area.     

Page 73



Strategic Policy 11 (SP11) – Historic Environment states that proposals will 
be supported where they protect and enhance heritage assets and their 
setting. 

 
Results of Consultation and Publicity 
 
13. (a) Local County Council Member, Councillor C Mair – has commented 

that there is an ongoing traffic issue on School Lane and that this 
kitchen pod would result in an increase in traffic that is incompatible 
with pedestrian safety.  It is added that there are not enough parking 
spaces as it stands for existing school staff and so an increase in staff 
would mean that there would be nowhere for them to park.  It is also 
commented that there is another Primary School on Clinton Park, 
Tattershall and that there is plenty of room for the kitchen pod and 
parking and that this school has a much safer road access to the site. 

 
 (b) Coningsby Parish Council – are unable to support the application due 

to the congestion of traffic already at the site particularly at busy times 
which results in residents driveways being blocked, etc.  The Parish 
Council has suggested that Tattershall Primary School be considered 
as an alternative site as that school does not have the same issues 
with access and parking.  They have also suggested that Lincolnshire 
Police also be consulted on this application as they are constantly 
being called to the St Michael's site regarding the on-going parking/ 
traffic issues. 

 
 (c) Highway and Lead Local Flood Authority - acknowledges that at school 

dropping off and pick up times there is an issue with traffic congestion 
down School Lane, however, the vehicle movements associated with 
this proposed kitchen hub would be avoiding these peak times and 
therefore avoid any conflict with the general school traffic.  
Consequently, no objections are raised. 

 
14. The following persons/bodies were also notified/consulted on 23 November 

2016 but had not replied within the statutory consultation period or by the 
time this report was prepared: 

 
  East Lindsey District Council (Environmental Health Officer) 
  Lincolnshire County Council (Trees Officer)  
 
15. The application was advertised by site notice and the occupiers of six 

properties where individually notified of the proposal.  No representations 
had been received within the statutory publicity period or by the time this 
report was prepared. 

 
District Council’s Observations  
 
16. East Lindsey District Council raise no objection to the proposal. 
 
  

Page 74



Conclusion 
 
17. The key issues to be considered in the determination of this application are 

the potential impacts of the kitchen pod and the activities associated with its 
use on the amenity of neighbouring residential properties and on the 
function and safety of the highway network. 

 
Design and Location 
 
18. The kitchen unit would be located to the north of the main school building 

but would be close to it and is set back and some distance away from the 
school boundary.  Although the external materials and colour of the kitchen 
unit differ from those used in the construction of the school buildings, these 
are not considered to be unacceptable and when viewed in the context of 
the wider school site the size, scale, design and materials of the kitchen unit 
would not have an adverse impact on the visual amenities of local residents 
nor would it detract from the appearance or character of the area.  Similarly, 
whilst the kitchen pod would be visible from the nearby public footpaths, its 
impact would be mitigated by the separation distance and the setting, as it 
would be set against the backdrop of the main school building and other 
ancillary structures (storage units and canopies), and would be partially 
screened by the nearby tree.  Additionally given the separation distance 
between the kitchen pod and the intervening residential property along with 
its fencing and hedging, the kitchen unit would also have no impact on views 
to or from the nearby Listed Building or on the setting of this significant 
heritage asset.  Consequently it is considered that the proposed 
development from a locational and design perspective would accord with the 
objectives of the NPPF Policies A4, A5 and C2 of the adopted East Lindsey 
Local Plan (1999) and Policies SP10 and SP11 of the emerging Core 
Strategy Policy SP11. 
 

Highways and Traffic 
 

19. The Parish Council and Local Member have raised concerns about the 
existing and on-going issues of traffic congestion and are concerned that 
these would be exacerbated by this proposal.  Although these concerns are 
noted the Highways Authority has raised no objection to the proposal as the 
actual additional movements associated with this development are minimal.  
Furthermore the applicant has confirmed that the movements associated 
with the delivery of foodstuffs to the school would equate to around three to 
four a week and these would be timed so as to avoid peak periods such as 
school drop off and collection times.  The proposed increase in staff as 
consequence of this proposal would also be small and only part time and so 
with this in mind, and having given due regard to the appropriate local and 
national planning policy guidance (in particular the NPPF) which states that 
development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds 
where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.  The 
proposed development is considered acceptable and would not have a 
detrimental impact on highway safety or the surrounding highway network to 
such a degree that it would justify or warrant refusal of the application.   

Page 75



Alternative Location 

20. The Parish Council and Local Member have suggested that the kitchen hub 
should be relocated to another school rather than the site proposed and that 
this alternative school would be better than the option chosen. 

21. The applicant has advised that when choosing a site to station a kitchen hub 
consideration is given to a range of factors which includes: the number of 
pupils on the school roll; the existing and likely take up of school meals; the 
financial viability of a school meals service taking into account free school 
meal provision and areas of deprivation; suitable available space within the 
school site and the infrastructure and presence of alternative school meal 
providers in the locality.  

22. In this case, the applicant states that one of the key elements for opting to 
choose for Coningsby was because the school has the potential to have up 
to 420 on it school roll.  Experience has shown that the larger the school, 
typically the higher the take up of school meals, and therefore this means 
that the school is able to achieve economies of scale and have a financially 
viable school meal service.  In contrast small schools which have less than 
100 meals served per day are at financial risk as they are unable to achieve 
the economies of scale that a larger school can.  The applicant argues that 
Coningsby has the appropriate number of pupils to achieve a financially 
viable school meal service and the space available to accommodate the 
kitchen unit whereas the two Tattershall schools have lower pupil numbers 
and therefore are at an increased risk of not achieving a financially viable 
catering service. 

23. Having taken into account the above and whilst the suggested alternative 
location for the kitchen unit suggested by the Parish Council and Local 
Member is noted, I am satisifed that this proposal would have a negligible 
impact on the general character of the local area and would not have an 
unreasonable impact upon residential amenity and only result in a small 
increase in vehicle movements.  I am therefore satisfied that the 
development would not have an adverse impact on the function or safety of 
the highway network and given the size, scale and nature of the 
development the proposals would not compromise the objectives of Policies 
A4, A5 or C2 of the East Lindsey Local Plan as well as Policies SP10 and 
SP11 of the emerging East Lindsey Core Strategy.  

 
24. The proposed development has been considered against Human Rights 

implications especially with regard to Article 8 – right to respect for private 
and family life and Protocol 1, Article 1 – protection of property and 
balancing the public interest and well – being of the community within these 
rights and the Council has had due regard to its public sector equality duty 
under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

  

Page 76



RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The use hereby permitted shall be implemented within three years from the 

date of this permission.  Written notification of the date of commencement of 
development shall be sent to the County Planning Authority within seven 
days of commencement. 

 
2. The use hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 

details contained in the submitted application form received on 9 November 
2016, supporting information contained in an email dated and received on 1 
November 2016, Drawings No. 549D.–001 and 549D.–002, received on 9 
November 2016, Drawings No. 549D.-003, 549D.-004, Drawings No. 549D.-
005 and 549D.-006 all received on 1 November 2016, unless otherwise 
modified by the conditions attached to this notice. 

 
3. All trees and shrubs to be retained as part of the development shall be 

protected during the construction phase of the development.  No work shall 
commence on site until the protection fencing/measures as set out in 
approved details set out in the supporting statement/email dated and 
received 1 November 2016 have been carried out and implemented.  All 
protection fencing shall be maintained during the course of the construction 
works on site and removed following their completion. 

 
4.  (a) The hours of operation associated with the use hereby permitted 

(excluding vehicular traffic associated with the delivery of supplies, 
dispatch of prepared meals and any other movements required in 
association with this use) shall be restricted to between the hours of 
06:30 and 16:30 hours on Mondays to Fridays.  The facility shall not be 
used on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank and Public Holidays. 

 
 (b) All vehicular traffic associated with the use hereby permitted shall only 

take place between the hours of 07:00 and 17:00 hours Monday to 
Friday.  No such movements or activities shall take place on Saturdays, 
Sundays or Bank and Public Holidays. 

 
 (c) No operations or activities shall take place outside of the hours cited in 

(a) and (b) above unless prior written notification has first been given to 
the County Planning Authority of any such proposed temporary 
extended hours of operation/use, including their duration, and written 
consent of those extended hours/periods has been obtained. 

 
5. The use hereby permitted shall be restricted to school term times only and 

during such periods to the hours of operation cited in Condition 4 unless the 
prior written approval of the County Planning Authority is obtained for the 
kitchen to be used outside school term times. 

  

Page 77



Reasons 
 
1. To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
2.  To ensure the permitted use is undertaken in strict accordance with the 

approved details. 
 
3. To ensure that trees and shrubs to be retained are adequately protected 

from damage throughout the construction period. 
 
4 & 5 To ensure that the use of the facility is restricted to those proposed within 

the application and to ensure that it does not become an independent 
commercial enterprise.  Also to minimise the impacts of the development on 
local residents. 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Committee Plan 

 
 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Application File 
(E)S35/2348/16 

Lincolnshire County Council, Planning, Witham Park 
House, Waterside South, Lincoln 

National Planning Policy 
Framework (2012) 

The Government's website 
www.gov.uk 

East Lindsey Local Plan 
1999 

East Lindsey Core 
Strategy 

East Lindsey District Council website  
www.e-lindsey.gov.uk  

 
 
This report was written by Anne Cant, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 

Page 78

http://www.gov.uk/
http://www.e-lindsey.gov.uk/
mailto:dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Site of Application

LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Reproduced from the 1996 OS Mapping with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown

Copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to civil proceedings.

OS LICENCE 1000025370



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 6 FEBRUARY 2017

Prevailing Wind Direction from the south-west



Location:

St Michael's CofE Primary School
School Lane
Coningsby

Application No:
Scale:  

(E)S35/2348/16

1:1250

Description:

Erection of a free standing kitchen pod which will act as a
"hub" providing meals for this and other local schools.
The proposal also comprises a covered walkway, along
with relocation of existing storage units and bike shelter

Page 79

elaine.simpson_1
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee held on 16 January 2017
	4. Traffic Regulation Orders - Progress Review
	TRO Progress Report Appendices

	 County Matter Application
	Update

	5. To demolish an existing building, construct a new building and operate a waste transfer station, including the production of refuse derived fuel, with associated development including a new weighbridge, relocation of existing wash bay, diesel tank and re-alignment of existing fence line by Veolia ES (UK) Ltd at Waste Management Facility, Veolia Site, Long Leys Road, Lincoln - L/1076/16
	pdf version of the presentation

	6. Erection of a free standing kitchen pod which will act as a "hub" providing meals for this and other local schools. The proposal also comprises a covered walkway, along with relocation of existing storage units and bike shelter at Coningsby St Michael's CofE Primary School, School Lane, Coningsby - (E)S35/2348/16

